PUBLIC NOTICE

City of Lockhart
Historical Preservation Commission
5:30 p.m. Wednesday, November 5, 2025
Municipal Building = Glosserman Room
308 West San Antonio Street

AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order.
2. Citizen comments not related to an agenda item.
3. Consider the minutes of the October 1, 2025 meeting.

4. CFA-25-25. Consider a request by John Stumpf for approval of a Certificate for Alteration for the
repainting of a previously-painted building with a different color on Lot 6 and part of Lot 1, Block 22,
Original Town of Lockhart, on property zoned CCB (Commercial Central Business), and located at
115 West San Antonio 5t

5. CFA-25-26. Consider a request by Lindsey Trumper for approval of a Certificate for Alteration for a
new sign on an existing awning on part of Lot 2, Block 17, Original Town of Lockhart, on property
zoned CCB (Commercial Central Business), and located at 110 South Commerce St.

6. Discuss potential amendments to Sections 28-10(c), 28-11(b}(3), and 28-11{c} of the Historic Districts
and Landmarks Ordinance.

7. Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting, including Commission requests for agenda items.

8. Adjournment.

Posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 308 West San Antonio Street,
Lockhart, Texas, at 3:00 p.m. on the 29" day of October, 2025.



City of Lockhart
Historical Preservation Commission
October 1, 2025

MINUTES

Members Present: Kevin Thuerwaechter, Christine Ohlendorf, Ron Faulstich, Jerry Haug, Frank
Gomillion

Members Absent: Ray Ramsey, Marcia Proctor

Staff Present: David Fowler, Kevin Waller, Christine Banda, Fatema Akter

Public Present: Chad Rea {applicant, Agenda Item 4)

1. Call meetingto order. Chair Thuerwaechter called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

2. Citizen comments not related to an agenda item. None

3. Consider the minutes of the September 17, 2025, meeting.

Commissioner Gomillion moved to approve the minutes as presented. Commissioner Faulstich
seconded; the motion passed by a vote of 5-0.

4, CFA-25-23. Consider a reguest by Chad Rea for approval of a Certificate for Alteration for a
new fence in the rear yard on Lot 2, Block 23, Original Town of Lockhart, on property zoned
CCB Commercial Central Business District and located at 111 East San Antonio Street.

Commissioner Faulstich recused himself from the case because he is the property manager
of the subject property.

Planning Staff Kevin Waller came forward to present the staff report to the Commission. The
report inciuded case maps and photos of the subject property. An Al version of what the
fence would look like was presented. The applicant proposes cedar wood fencing with steel
posts for support. The fence would not physically touch the adjoining building walls. Mr.
Waller stated that staff recommends approval with conditions, being the use of either a
wrought-iron or similar material in lieu of cedar wood, or a stain on the wood to provide a
darker shade, instead of resembling residential fencing.

Chair Thuerwaechter asked for the applicant to come forward.

Applicant Chad Rea of 400 Hackberry Street introduced himself and asked if the
Commissioners had any gquestions.

Commissioner Gomillion asked if the fence gate would be locked from the inside, prohibiting
emergency personnel from access.

-1-
Historical Preservation Commission Meeting 10-01-2025



5.

Mr. Rea replied that he could leave the gate unlocked if it needs to be.

Commissioner Ohlendorf asked if there have been any incidents to cause the need for fencing
in the rear yard of the business.

Mr. Rea replied that there had been a lot of activity in the back, with vandalism and roaming
dogs. He just wants to be able to keep people out and have useable space for his artwork
and outdoor furniture.

The Commissioners discussed the fence material and emergency access concerns.

Ron Faulstich stated that he is the property manager, and according to his measurements,
the fence would be placed 20 feet from the rear property line.

Mr. Rea added that there would still be enough room for him to park his car in front of where
the fence would be placed.

Commissioner Gomillion moved to approve CFA-25-23 without staff's recommended
conditions for a wrought iron material or similar, or paint/stain the fence to resemble wrought
iron. Commissioner Thuerwaechter seconded; the motion passed by a vote of 4-0.

Discuss the impacts of vegetative growth on building walls in the Courthouse Square Historic

Mr. Waller discussed vegetative growth on building walls downtown. There were concerns
from a citizen that the vegetation could harbor insects and moisture, as well as birds and bird
droppings. Mr. Waller identified four buildings where overgrowth is taking place downtown.
He explained that in addition to the hazards discussed, there are benefits of vegetative
growth on buildings, including insulation against extreme temperatures, protection against
erosive wind or other weather forces, and aesthetics. Waller stated that staff had been
unable to locate specific provisions from other municipalities addressing this topic. He
pointed out that the City already has authority over the maintenance/upkeep of buildings
downtown in Section 28-17 (prevention of demolition by neglect), Historic Districts and
Landmarks, that include the prevention or remedying of damage to property from such
threats as invasive vegetation.

There was discussion among the Commission on how to manage vegetation overgrowth
downtown.

The Commission’s consensus was not to pursue amendments to the ordinance, as Section
28-17 addresses actions to remedy such issues as vegetation overgrowth. Any concerns
about conditions observed downtown can be referred to the city’s code enforcement
division.

-2
Historical Preservation Commission Meeting 10-01-2025



6.

8.

Discuss potential amendments to Sections 28-10(c), 28-11(b)(3}, and 28-11(c) of the Historic
Districts and Landmarks Ordinance.

Mr. Waller informed the Commission that Commissioner Proctor has recently suggested
expanding the definition of ordinary maintenance, and the addition of certain materials to
the list of construction activities that do not require a Certificate for Alteration. These
materials include wood-like composite, advanced PVC, or other materials that maintain the
original wood look. The repair/reconstruction of porches could be added to the list of
preapproved activities. Mr. Waller stated that the Commission could recommend any desired
Ordinance text amendments to the City Council at a future Commission meeting, and that
the Commission could direct staff to draft the amendments.

Commissioner Gomillion moved to table discussion of this agenda item to a future meeting to
be determined. Commissioner Ohlendorf seconded; the motion passed by a vote of 5-0.

Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting, including Commission requests for agenda
items.

Mr. Waller stated that the next regularly scheduled meeting would be held on November 5%,
No items have been submitted by the deadline, to date.

Adjournment.

Commissioner Faulstich moved to adjourn the meeting, and Commissioner Haug seconded.
The motion passed by a vote of 5-0, and the meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m.

Approved:

(date)

Christine Banda, Recording Secretary Kevin Thuerwaechter, Chairman

-3-
Historical Preservation Commission Meeting 10-01-2025



I
\ ‘/\ﬂ\ B
\\ \\ \

% \\ m| LA

CFA-25-25
115 W SAN ANTONIO ST

REPAINT TO ADIFFERENT COLOR

SUBJECT PROPERTY

D ZONING BOUNDARY

Scale 1" =100



Rl
!

|

99 002




STAFF REPORT CERTIFICATE FOR ALTERATION

CASE SUMMARY

STAFF: Kevin Waller, Historical Preservation Officer/Senior Planner K\f‘/ CASE NUMBER: CFA-25-25
REPORT DATE: October 29, 2025

MEETING DATE: November 5, 2025

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: Repainting of previously-painted building with a different color

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

CONDITIONS: None

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT: John Stumpf

OWNERS: John Stumpf and Katherine Pritchett

SITE LOCATION: 115 West San Antonio St.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 6 and part of Lot 1, Block 22, Original Town of Lockhart
EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Commercial

PROPOSED USE OF PROPERTY: Same

ZONING CLASSIFICATION: CCB (Commercial Central Business)

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Staff recently discovered that the front wall fagade of the subject property
containing the Golden Hour business was repainted from a blue to a dark olive-green color, prior to
securing approval from the Commission. In subsequent conversations with both the business owner and
property owner, Staff was informed that the business owner was not aware that the repainting to a
different color now requires approval by the Commission.

COMPATIBILITY: The recent repainting to the dark olive color does not present adverse impacts to the
Courthouse Square Historic District. There are other examples of similarly-colored buildings on the
Square, including the Magnolia Jewels business on the same block as the subject property, the Fiddler’s
Green music shop at 108 North Main St., and portions of the Henry’s restaurant building at 215 South
Commerce St.

COMPLIANCE WITH STANDARDS: There are no design guidelines in the Historic Districts and Landmarks
Ordinance for repainting, nor is a building permit required. The proposal is, however, subject to approval
of this Certificate for Alteration.

ALTERNATIVES: None necessary.









e

- _d et
| OLHREDS

\ dowhy I g

iy
{

i

I
A
L
L]
¥
ﬂu‘:;;x i
fiiid
FA‘ f

S A

A

et il <

IR APty peeny

ramy

i

Bt

,.,‘
Sl
e o

Nl G s






CERTIFICATE FOR ALTERATION APPLICATION

(512) 398-3461 « FAX (512} 398-3833
i FP.O. Box 239 « Lockhart Texas 78644
T E X A 308 West San Antonio Street

APPLICANT / PROPERTY OWNER

APPLICANT NAME ™o/ 2 J’?/‘am/){ ADDRESSJA&/{%@ YOS

DAY-TIME TELEPHONE 28/ 4/ 5027 [ripioip 7x 7258/
EMAIL Je 2 IS @ fas-pc. 0126 ’

OWNER NAME d) Fumpe £ ADDRESS 262/ Zfy e
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE &8/ ¢/ S0 2 SRR ,4[/_/9 e 9288/
E-MAIL Jobr J CABL - A ORG

PERSON DOING WORK _ 7 £Z24477 ESTIMATED cOST # 20 0,0 0
PROPERTY'  L<% G an) _ Ocign\ Tewn '

V e SR u_ 2 V / - S
LEGAL DESCRIPTION /27" £oT 4, /3Lock 22 [T of LockfonT AT
ADDRESS /5 2e/s SPrs fotTorrd Loc Kbpr? 75545 ZONING CLASSIFICATION 225

GENERAL INFORMATION

An approved Certificate for Alteration (CFA) is required by City Code for all signage, construction, alteration, or
modification of property designated as Historic, if such activities will change the architecture, design, finishes, or
outward appearance of a building, structure, object, site, area, or district, as viewed from the exterior (Ord. 93-19,
Sec. 11 and 12). A CFA is also required for interior work affecting load-bearing walls. A City Sign Permit and/or
City Building Permit may also be required by City Code. Only fully completed applications will be accepted.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ATTACHMENTS

PLEASE INCLUDE PHOTOS OF THE PROJECT AREA WITH THE APPLICATION, AS WELL AS A DIAGRAM(S) OF

THE PROPOSED WORK WITH DIMENSIONS, MATERIALS, METHOD OF ATTACHMENT TO THE BUILDING (IF

APPLICABLE), TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS, ETC. THE DIAGRAM MAY BE HAND-DRAWN. ALL

ATTACHMENTS MUST B_I_E IN 8.5" X 11" FORMAT. PROVIDE A DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED WORK HERE:
AT Gusytess FfeorsT A v Spas RaTonsisn STERes

— f\g;\u-.c.r\\—‘mz ~Lfewn e (i'(‘ tend WOR, Ssloc Yo VN ooy O\t%i\jt«-\\m\ﬁf -

APPLICATION FEE OF $50.00, payable to the City of Lockhart  Receipt Number-

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE COMPLETE AND CORRECT,
AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS
CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

APPLICANT SIGNATURE % dg,%ﬂ?/ DATE /f/gézg
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE % 4%% DATE Lo /g/é?\f

HISTORICAL PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPROVAL DATE




CERTIFICATE FOR ALTERATION- SCOPE OF WORK QUESTIONNAIRE

This form must be completed by the applicant for a Certificate for Alteration. The Lockhart Historical Preservation
Officer (HPO) shall independently verify all information provided on the application and attached questionnaire. The
HPO shall review the application and this questionnaire in an expedient manner and notify the applicant of the outcome
of the review. Additional information may be needed to complete the application and review process. Final review and
action on the application for the Certificate for Alteration by the Lockhart Historical Preservation Commission in a public
meeting is required. Any required explanations to answers given shall be attached. The proposed improvements
represented on this application will be the limit of construction and alteration work undertaken.

Construction shall not begin prior to authorization by the approval of the Certificate for Alteration.
7{/5/‘:,7'« J o:-—a"/;r/_n e, Aree7S

Yes No Verified SCOPE OF WORK QUESTIONS PR IA .,[a/_ﬁw,c,f,u\?

/ . 1/\/ Section One

' K 1. Is this application for construction or alteration on or at a property which is in a Historic District
or a City-designated Historic Landmark? What is its zoning designation? _~~ 5 4
Check one: Historic Landmark Historic District (/

(T k‘/‘/ 2. Is this application for any construction or alteration work that is NOT described or defined as 7K -
ordinary maintenance of a historic property? Is it more than limited “Ordinary Maintenance™? /27 &

Z e~ g“/ 3. Wll the construction or alteration covered by this application include any work visible from the

) exterior of the property?
v oW

- Will the construction or alteration covered by this application remove or physically change any
structural elements of the property (i.e. interior or exterior load-bearing walls, columns, posts,
foundations, footings, etc.)?

‘ Section Two
v o

. Is the construction or alteration covered by this application considered an emergency repair of
sudden, accidental, or unforeseen property damage? When did damage occur?

- _[/ /q’\-/ 2. Is the construction or alteration covered by this application considered necessary to correct a
circumstance that endangers a building, business, owner, or the public?

'_l/_ . K«{/\/ 3. Is the construction or alteration covered by this application considered permanent, to be in
place more than 90 days? (A temporary construction or alteration is required to be removed
J within 90 days and the property is to be returned to the original or agreed upon condition.)
Z /:’9\/ 4. Has a permit been issued for any of the proposed work? Date: Pu_e_[mit No.
Has any work actually started? [4 Describe: s i-foce o o Tero ~ /'e/uﬂ.v‘/"‘/j,,u, (o @
Section Three =~ 9% 7 4eo7e

_ _Z le U‘/ 1. Will the construction or alteration covered by this application make a physical change to any
design elements, features, or finishes visible from the exterior of the property?

. Z é V\/ 2. Wil the construction or alteration covered by this application repair or replace an element of
the building or property with a material different from the original material of that element?

. _1/_/ {\//V\/ 3. WIll the construction or alteration covered by this application include painting exterior surfaces
that have not been previously painted?

_ Z_ félﬁ\/ 4. Does the construction or alteration covered by this application include demolition or removal of
{./ y any part or element of the property visible from the exterior of the property?
i/ <IN

o

Will the construction or alteration covered by this application make any change in the
appearance of the property as viewed from the exterior of the property?

Scope of Work Questions Verified By: K‘QV; ~ \/\/ ci\\e:’ﬂ
Date of Verification: 4 2L RS

CEA=AS=A5

Certificate No. Date Submitted \(_‘)/\k/lj

Please Note: A Certificate for Alteration is valid for a period concurrent with the Building Permit granted for
the proposed work, or a period not to exceed 18 months.



\ P s X P

CFA-25-26 X

SUBJECT PROPERTY

! —_
110 S COMMERCE ST |
D ZONING BOUNDARY

NEW SIGN ON AWNINIG

Scale 1" = 100"



CFA-25-26
110 S COMMERCE ST

NEW SIGN ON AWNINIG

Scale 1" = 100’



STAFF REPORT CERTIFICATE FOR ALTERATION

CASE SUMMARY

STAFF: Kevin Waller, Historical Preservation Officer/Senior Planner\/\\/\/ CASE NUMBER: CFA-25-26
REPORT DATE: October 29, 2025

MEETING DATE: November 5, 2025

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: New sign on awning

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

CONDITIONS: None

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT: Lindsey Trumper

OWNER: Twelfth Hole Ventures, LLC, c/o Mark Shaw

SITE LOCATION: 110S. Commerce St.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Part of Lot 2, Block 17, Original Town of Lockhart
EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Commercial

PROPOSED USE OF PROPERTY: Same

ZONING CLASSIFICATION: CCB (Commercial Central Business)

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A sign is proposed to be hand-painted onto the awning of the Thorn & Bred retail
establishment. This sign will be centered on the edge of the awning, and located directly above the
double-door entry. The sign will feature the business logo shown on the right-hand side of the double
doors, to include the name “thorn & bred” in white lettering, with a white coffee cup with cactus graphic
to the left of the text. In addition, an hours of operation sign is proposed to be placed beneath the logo
on the right entry door, to measure one square foot. Since the hours of operation sign will measure less
than two square feet, it will be considered an exempt sign per Section 46-7(19) of the Sign Ordinance.

COMPATIBILITY: The proposed sign is not of a scale or design that would detract from the character of
the Courthouse Square Historic District. Other signs applied directly to awnings can be found on the
Square, including on the same block as the subject property, such as at the Independence Title company,
in addition to Link Realty at 110 East Market St., Spellerberg Projects at 103 South Main St., and First
Lockhart National Bank at 111 South Main St.

COMPLIANCE WITH STANDARDS: The sign complies with the Sign Ordinance, and the required Sign Permit
is subject to approval of this Certificate for Alteration.

ALTERNATIVES: None necessary.



TP thorn &bred §

DI e 4

i
i







CERTIFICATE FOR ALTERATION APPLICATION

ﬁ 4 CFA™LS . %G

j ' 1 L 3 &

(512) 3983461 + FAX(512) 398-3833
i P.O.Box 239 » Lockhart, Texas 78644

308 West Sart Antonio Strect
TEXAS

APPLICANT / PROPERTY OWNER

APPLICANT NAME _LinamoeyY TﬂumpET-l appress 1D S. Coramierce S

AY-TIME TELEPHONE _211-Q44-Q\6F Locklayt X mhdas
-MAIL or ul. T
WNER NAME LLC appress 7345 bbwimi% ue Dr
AY-TIME TELEPHONE 244 -\ % - 3324 Dallas TX 9S24

E-MAIL :

PERSON DOING WORK Co. estimaTepcosT_ 4 20060

&ROPERTY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION _D.T. T K13, LT PT2

ADDRESS 1DS.Commerce St | ockhart 42l zoning cLassiFicaTion BRMCR

GENERAL INFORMATION

odification of property designated as Historic, if such activities will change the architecture, design, finishes, or
utward appearance of a building, structure, abject, site, area, ar district, as viewed from the exterior (Ord. 93-19,
>ec. 11 and 12). A CFA is also required for interior work affecting load-bearing walls. A City Sign Permit and/or
¢|ty Building Permit may also be required by Citv Cade  Only fully completed appii{;_a‘tians wi" be accepted.
(Hond ~Patded) |
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ATAACHMENTS

iL:EASE INCLUDE PHOTOS OF THE PROJECT AREA WITH THE APPLICATION, AS WELL AS A DIAGRAM(S) OF

i: approved Certificate for Alteration (CFA) is required by City Code for all signage, construction, alteration, or

HE PROPOSED WORK WITH DIMENSIONS. MATERIALS, METHOD OF ATTACHMENT TO THE BUILDING (IF
A PLICABLE), TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS,| ETC. THE DIAGRAM MAY BE HAND-DRAWN. ALL
TIT

ACHMENTS MUST BE IN 8.5" X 11" FORMAT. | PROVIDE A DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED WORK HERE:
Jﬁe uld Lke +o add pur loap o the awnina sathe bont pCthe

[

iialnoe ', e _ta — \Squarce,

| EHemeY S0 foe A~ U9)D Koo
\PPLICATION FEE OF $50.00 PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART __ Receipt Number: & {4\ 22, +

O THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE COMPLETE AND CORRECT,

ND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS
ONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

‘PPLICANT SIGNATURE %«& DATE mh_’,‘gz_ms
\

‘ \ 10/13 /2025
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE DATE

HISTORICAL PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPROVAL DATE

I Doc ID: 294930186337 19bd59a5e8ba0dfdecdccedf9422




CERTIFICATE FOR ALTERATION- SCOPE OF WORK QUESTIONNAIRE

This form must be compleied by the applicant for a Cerlificate for Alteration. The Lockhart Historical Preservation
foicer (HPO) shall independently verify all information provided on the application and attached questionnaire. The

PO shall review the application and this questionnaire in an expedient manner and notify the applicant of the outcome
of the review. Additional information may be needed to complete the application and review process. Final review and
action on the application for the Certificate for Alteration by the Lockhart Historical Preservation Commission in a public
eeting is required. Any required explanations to answers given shall be attached. The proposed improvements
represented on this application will be the limit of construction and alteration work undertaken.

onstruction shall not begin prior to authorization by the approval of the Certificate for Alteratipn.
Construction already begun or completed, prior to receiving approval of a Certificate for Alteration
application, will be subject to a double fee for said application.

Yes No Verified SCOPE OF WORK QUESTIONS

¥V/ Section One
)

X . Is this application for construction or alteration on or at a property which is in a Historic District
' or a City-designated Historic Landmark? What is ifs zoning designation?
' / Check one: Historic Landmark Historic District %

. Is this application for any construction or alteration work that is NOT described or defined as

X

ordinary maintenance of a historic property? Is it more than limited "Ordinary Mainienance"?

. \.J 3. Will the construction or alteration covered by this application include any work visible from the
exterior of the property?

i
i

. Will the construction or alteration covered by this application remove or physically change any

structural elements of the property (i.e. interior or exterior load-bearing walls, columns, posts,
foundations, footings, etc.)?

Section Two
i L ¥V\} 1. Is the construction or alteration covered by this application considered an emergency repair of
V\j sudden, accidental, or unforeseen property damage? When did damage ocour?

N

S

N

- Is the construction or alteration covered by this application considered necessary to correct a
circumstance that endangers a building, business, owner, or the public?
place more than 80 days? (A temporary construction or alteration is required to be removed
\,\) within 90 days and the property is to be returned to the original or agreed upon condition.)
Has any work actually started? _ Describe;
\/ / Section Three
o A
desian elements. features. or finishes visible from the exterior of the proparty?
- the building or property with a material different from the original material of that element?
& M Will the construction or alteration covered by this application include painting exterior surfaces

_)L o QD[ 3. Is the construction or alteration covered by this application considered permanent, to be in
. Has a permit been issued for any of the proposed work? Date: Permit No.
- Will the construction or alteration covered by this application make a physical change to any
18 L g& Will the construction or alteration covered by this application repair or replace an element of
that have not been previously painted?

=

_ox _Kkwo,

. Does the construction or alteration covered by this application include demolition or removal of
any part or element of the property visible from the exterior of the property?

_'X_ _ K\’\/ 5. Will the construction or alteration covered by this application make any change in the
appearance of the property as viewed from the exterior of the property?

Scope of Work Questions Verified By: V\‘\V\\ N\ \f\j d\\\(‘c
Date of Verification: \,C)/ 7\3 / ’Z‘\S

Certificate No. _FA - ~S~2.¢_ Date Submitted \d/ KA/ RS

Please Note: A Certificate for Alteration is valid for a period concurrent with the Building Permit granted for
the proposed work, or a period not to exceed 18 months.

Doc ID: 2949a0186337 19bd59a5e8baldf4ecdccedfa422



SIGN PERMIT APPLICATION

SP# AS—
CITY OF
(512) 398-3461
P.O. Box 239 Lockhart Texas 78644
308 West Sarnn Antonio Street
TEXAS
CONTRACTOR/OWNER
: . o Recrr So\wmon
CONTRACTOR NAME _ Austin American Awning = FZ5=¢ =<0 e NISE NO.
512-326-1670
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE ADDREss 19 South Churen St

E-MAIL thomas@austinawning.com ru‘,ugmwu“.&m@u _cown, Lockhart, TX 78644

OWNER NAME TwR3EH W W\, Vepdeuers, H-° appress 345 Dowmin awe De.

DAY-TIME TELEPHONE X\ &~ A -23326 0"\\\“5 S XS\

EMAL warkshan g X345 @(DM‘:*\'&’M

PROPERTY
ADDRESS/DR GENERAL FOGATION 10 5 CommeresSt, Lackhart
ZONING CLASSIFICATION _FRCCB HISTORIC LANDMARK ORQISTRICY (Y/N) _Y

1
NUMBER OF STREET FRONTAGES (Property lines abutting a public street)

PRINCIPAL USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDINGS ON THE SITE Cate

NAME OF BUSINESS TO OWN OR USE PROPOSED SIGN horn & Bred Mercantile

REQUESTED PERMIT

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION (Check all that apply) X ON-PREMISE ~ _____ OFF-PREMISE
_ X NEWSIGN ____ STRUCTURAL REPAIR ____ STRUCTURAL ALTERATION/RELOCATION
TYPE OF SIGN PROPOSED (Check all that apply)%AWﬁn‘t_\ SEWALL __ MARQUEE
__ X | OWPROFILE __ MEDIUM PROFILE _____ HIGH PROFILE

INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT ENTRANCE RESIDENTIAL IDENTIFICATION



Qs o€ LIE7 = 5645 ma, Wowerd ST g ey
E‘K\.ﬁ:\r‘xi&% Sian= \.%F

ofasc d Si = -4
CHARACTERISTICS OF SIGN ' 257 Son= %

IF ATTACHED SIGN, TOTAL AREA OF BUILDING FACADE ON WHICH LOCATED == sq FT.

IF FREESTANDING SIGN, SETBACK FROM NEAREST STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE FT.

* 8

HEIGHT TO TOP OF SIGN FT. TOTAL SIGN FACE AREA (One side only) SQ. FT.

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

DRAWING, PREFERABLY SUBMITTED ON PAPER NO LARGER THAN 11" X 17", SHOWING: 1) The
location of the proposed sign on the site or building, including dimensioned references to adjacent building
features or nearest property line, as appropriate; 2) Dimensions of the sign and sign structure, including
foundation or mounting details; 3) Material and electrical specifications; 4) Name of sign manufacturer, if
applicable; and, 5) If the sign is to be freestanding and over six feet high, certification by a licensed engineer
for structural compliance with the building code.

ILLUMINATION X NONE INTERNAL REFLECTED BARE BULB

LIST OF SIGN FACE AREA OF ALL EXISTING SIGNS, IF ANY, ON THE SAME BUILDING FACADE (for
attached signs) OR ALONG EACH STREET FRONTAGE OF THE PROPERTY (for freestanding signs).

COPY OF STATE PERMIT OR AUTHORIZATION IF APPLICATION IS FOR AN OFF-PREMISE SIGN.

COMPLETED APPLICATION FOR A CERTIFICATE OF ALTERATION IF SIGN IS IN HISTORIC DISTRICT
OR ON HISTORIC LANDMARK PROPERTY.

PERMIT FEE OF $100, PLUS $1.00 PER EACH SQUARE FOOT, (applied to only one side of double-
faced signs), APPLICATION FEE OF $ t88 \ Q% .¢©
PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART WHEN THE PERMIT IS ISSUED.

| HEREBY AFFIRM THAT IF | AM NOT OWNER OF THE PROPERTY UPON WHICH THE SIGN IS TO BE
LOCATED, | AM AUTHORIZED BY THE PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS ENTITY OWNING
THE PROPERTY TO REPRESENT THEM IN THIS APPLICATION. TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE,
THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE COMPLETE AND CORRECT.

SIGNATURE 45X DATE 10/18/2025

PRINTED OR TYPED NAME _Lindsey Trumper

NOTE: All freestanding signs require a pre-pour foundation inspection to verify the location and reinforcement
of the sign. It is the contractor’s responsibility to call for the inspection.

**Where work for which a permit is required per Code is started or proceeded prior to obtaining said permit, the fees herein specified
shall be doubled, but the payment of such double fee shall not relieve any persons from fully complying with the requirements of this
Code in the execution of the work nor from any other penalties prescribed herein.***

OFFICE USE ONLY -
APPROVED BY /%’%«_:——-————‘

Planning Building Inspection

PERMIT NUMBER SP # AS— CERT. FOR ALTERATION NUMBER CFA - AS (16
% L
DATE FEE % \@ %90 RECEIPT #




CITY OF

(512) 398-3461 » FAX (512) 398-5103
OC ar P.0. Box 239 e Lockhart, Texas 78644

TEXAS 308 West San Antonio Street

TO: Lockhart Historical Preservation Commission
FROM: Kevin Waller, Historical Preservation Officer / Senior Planner ‘Y\\’\/

SUBJECT: Miscellaneous potential Ordinance amendments (Agenda Item 6)
DATE: October 29, 2025

Agenda Item 6: Discuss potential amendments to Sections 28-10(c), 28-11(b)(3), and 28-11(c) of the
Historic Districts and Landmarks Ordinance (tabled from October 1, 2025 meeting).

A member of the Commission recently requested a discussion item with regard to amending the above
sections of the Historic Districts and Landmarks Ordinance. Specifically, the requests include the
expansion of the definition of ordinary maintenance (Section 28-10(c)); the addition of certain materials
to the list of construction activities that do not require a Certificate for Alteration, including wood-look
composite, advanced PVC, or other materials that maintain the original wood look (Section 28-11(b)(3));
and the addition of repair/reconstruction of porches to the list of “pre-approved” activities (Section
28-11(c)). The above-referenced sections are included with your agenda packet materials, as well as
Section 28-13 (criteria for approval of certificate for alteration) and Section 28-14 (certificate for
demolition and other demolition requirements), which have also been requested for inclusion in your
packets as supporting material. As this agenda item is simply for discussion purposes only, any formal
vote to recommend ordinance amendments to the City Council will need to occur in a future Commission

meeting. The Commission may also direct Staff to draft the ordinance amendments.



Kevin Waller_ :

From: Marcia Proctor <mproctor001@gmail.com> -
Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2025 12:31 PM
. To: - Kevin Waller
Subject: Would it be possible to get a copy of these pages from the ordinance

i This email originated fromi:

I would like to provide the commission members a copy of pages from the ordinance... CD28:13,
Cd28:14, CD:14.1, and CD28:14.2 , as my request for a future agenda item to amend the following
. sections of the ordinance :

1) 28.11.c add to list of pre-approved activities- repair/reconstruct potches -

2) 28.10.c expand definition of ordinary maintenance

3) 28.11.b.(3) add current relevant materials - such as wood look composite, advanced PVC, or other
innovative materials that maintain originat wood look

Will you be able to provide this set of pages for the commission members to have related to my request
for a future agenda item?



9/24/25, 12:10 PM Lockhart, TX Code of Ordinances

Sec. 28-10. - Ordinary maintenance.

-

(a)

(b)

The intent and purpose of this chapter is to encourage and assist the property owners to
maintain, rehabilitate, enhance and preserve landmarks and districts. Nothing in this chapter
shall be construed to prevent ordinary maintenance and repair of any interior or exterior
architectural feature of an historic landmark or property within an historic district which does not

involve a change in the architecture, design, finishes or outward overall appearance.

Ordinary maintenance is considered necessary and generally refers to activities that would be

considered customary or common for maintaining the property without a change of overall
appearance.

{9

Ordinary maintenance is an activity which is generally unrestricted and is encouraged by this

"‘chapter. In-kind replacement or repair of any interior ér exterior building element is included as

ordinary maintenance. Interior repairs or construction which do not change the appearance or
structure of the building are considered ordinary maintenance for the purposes of this chapter.
This includes all activities which do not change the architecture, appearance, finishes or design of

the building, structure or object as viewed from its exterior.

(d)

(e)

Repainting shall be considered ordinary maintenance and may include a change in color of
painted surfaces. '

Ordinary maintenance does not include the following and will require a certificate for alteration

and a city building permit prior to beginning work, except as exempted in subsection 28-11{b):

(1) A physical change in exterior elements, design and finishes visible from grade level which
affect the appearance and cohesiveness of a building, structure, site or area (e.g., a physical
change in the design, finishes, size, shape, etc., of facades, windows, doors, light fixtures,
awnings, signs, sidewalks, fences, steps, paving, etc.). " ‘

(2) Repainting or otherwise covering or altering a faded historic painted sign (ghost sign), even if

the sign does not pertain to the current use of the building or is on a previously painted
surface.

(3) -Painting a previously unpainted brick, stone or other masonry surface or changing the color
of any previously painted surface, including trim. '

(Ord. No. 93-19, pt. 10, 9-21-93; Code 1982, § 12.5-10; Ord. No. 2010-16, § 1, 6-15-10; Ord. No. 2022-54, § Il
10-18-22) -

about:blank

1M



9/24/25, 11:56 AM 4 Lockhart, TX Code of Ordinances

Sec. 28-11. - Certificate for alteration for historic landmarks or historic districts.

(a) A certificate for alteration is required to carry out construction or relocation on property
designated as historic (H and HL) if such construction will change the exterior architecture,

design, finishes or outward appearance of a building, structure, object, site, area or district.
{b) A certificate for alteration (CFA} is not required for the following construction activities and work.

However, no exempted construction shall involve the drilling, cutting, covering or painting of

virgin or unpainted masonry and/or removal of same:

(1) Any interior or exterior construction activities, which do not make a physical change to the
exterior elements, design features, finishes or appearance of the property designated
historic.

(2} in-kind replacement or repair of any exterior element or for the ordinary maintenance of an
historic landmark or property within an historic district as provided in section 28-10.

‘ (3) Exterior wood. Replacement of existing painted wood on the exterior of a building with a
durable cementitious wood material is exempt if the material is painted and does not make a

| physical change to the exterior elements, design features, finishes or appearance of the

\ property.

"~ (4) Roofs. Replacement of existing roofing material with like or similar material and same design,
slope and elevation is exempted. However, if the roof structure is clearly visible from a public
street, replacement of existing roofing material with a different design, slope, elevation or
material, such as replacing wood or slate roofing with metal roofing, does require a CFA

approval by the commission, as provided in section 28-12.

{5) Utility installations on the rear and/or alley side of buildings which do not abut or are not
clearly visible from a public street and do not alter, damage or obscure the architectural

design, fabric (composition) or appearance, as provided in subsection 28-11(a) are exempted.

Any such exempted utility work shall not involve the drilling, cutting, covering or painting of

virgin or unpainted masonry or removal of same,

(c) A certificate for alteration (CFA) may be "pre-approved” for the following construction activities
and work. Any qualifying activities and work pre-approved by the commission shall be listed and
described in a "Pre-Approved Certificate for Alteration Guideline" developed by the commission,

maintained and published by the city. An application for a CFA for any construction or activity that

is determined "pre-approved" shall be made by the owner as provided in subsection 28-12(a)
prior to conducting the work. The historical preservation officer (HPO) shall promptly review the
application and determine if the construction or activity complies with the "pre-approved”

criteria. The HPO has the authority to approve the CFA only for construction or activities, which

; qualify as "pre-approved.” Any construction activity that qualifies as pre-approved as determined

by the HPO does not require any further approval of the commission, and may proceed according

about:blank

113



8/24/25, 11:56 AM

2)

(3)

4

Lockhart, TX Code of Ordinances

to normal city policies and procedures. Any "pre-approved” construction or activity shall not involve the
drilling, cutting, covering or painting of virgin or unpainted masonry or removal of same. Types of
alterations included in the Pre-Approved Certificate for Alteration Guideline follow:

(1) Signs as provided for in "Pre-Approved Certificate for Alteration Guideline," signs that do not

alter, damage or obscure a building's architectural design, historic fabric or appearance as
otherwise provided in subsection 28-11(a) are "pre-approved.” No sign may be painted on a
previously unpainted masonry wall. Business signs suspended from canopies over the public
sidewalk or attached to the exterior of buildings may be "pre-approved,” as provided in "Pre-
Approved Certificate for Alteration Guideline.” All signs shall comply with chapter 46 "Signs."
Signs that are exempt and do not require a CFA include: Temporary banners suspended over
streets and temporary sighs on public rights-of-way or public property advertising
noncommercial special events and festivities as provided in chapter 46, subsection 46-7(15);

and banner signs on private property as provided in chapter 46, subsection 46-10(g).

Window replacement may be "pre-approved" only as provided in the "Pre-Approved
Certificate for Alteration Guideline." Generally, the replacement of existing windows with
historically appropriate designed painted wood single or 2-over-2 divided-light windows
matched'to the size of the historic window openings may be "pre-approved." Any other ti/pe

of window replacement or closure of windows requires CFA approval by the commission as
provided in section 28-12,

Door replacement may be "pre-approved" only as provided in "Pre-Approved Certificate for
Alteration Guideline." Generally, the replacement of an existing front entry door with a
historically appropriate designed wood door is "pre-approved.” Replacement of a side or rear
door with exterior grade, solid core, smooth slab doorsis "pre-approved.” Any other type of

entry door replacement requires CFA approval by the commission as provided in section 28-
12

Exterior fire-safety stairs constructed to meet city codes which do not alter or damage the
architectural design, fabric (composition) or appearance as provided in subsection 28-11(a),
may be "pre-approved” if located on the rear or non-street side of a building. The owner,
designer and/or contractor are encouraged to meet with the Lockhart Historical Preservation
Commission to discuss alternatives in location, placement and design prior to requesting an

opinion or directive from the city fire marshal. Installation of exterior fire-safety stairs shall

not alter or damage the architectural design, fabric (composition) or appearance as provided
in subsection 28-11(a).

(d) A certificate for alteration is not required for the following:

M
(2)

about:blank

Signs that are not visible from a public street;



8/24/25, 11:53 AM

Lockhart, TX Code of Ordinances

Sec. 28-13. - Criteria for approval of certificate for alteration.

In considering an application for a certificate for alteration, the commission shall be guided by the design
criteria and guidelines developed by the commission and adopted by the city council. The criteria and
guidelines shall be adopted forthwith and shall foliow, where applicable, "The Secretary of the Interior's
Standards for the Rehabilitation of Historic Buildings," as revised 1990, or as may be hereafter amended.
The design guidelines adopted by the council and the "Secretary of the Interior's Standards” shall be made

available to the property owners of historic landmarks or within historic districts, If requested, the

commission and/or the historical preservation officer shall assist property owners with advice, guidance,

resource lists and other information regarding construction technigues, materials, means and methods

which are acceptable and recommended for the construction inciuded in the proposed certificate for
alteration. The following shali be the minimum criteria for approval:

about:blank

(1) The predominate criteria for approval of a certificate for alteration shall be to support

(2)

4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

proposed construction activities which will enhance an area, site, building, structure or object
which is zoned historic, and thereby encourage continued maintenance and preservation of
historical buildings, structures, objects and sites.

Contemporary design for alterations and new additions to existing properties shall not be
discouraged when such alterations and additions do not destroy significant historical,
architectural or cultural material; or such design is compatible with the size, scale, color,

material, finishes and character of the property, neighborhood, or environment.

Wherever possible, new additions or alterations to buildings, structures, objects, or sites shall
be done in such a manner that, if such additions or alterations were to be removed in the
future, the essential form and integrity of the original building, structure, object, or site would
be unimpaired.

Changes which may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and
development of a building, structure, object or site andits environment. These changes may
or may not have acquired significance in their own right. If these changes have acquired
significance in their own right, this significance shall berecognized and respected.

Every reasonable effort shall be made to adapt the property in a manner which requires
minimal alteration of the basic building, structure, object or site and its environment.

The distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, structure, object or site and its

environment should not be destroyed. The removal or alteration of any historic material,

finish or distinctive architectural features should be avoided when possible.

Distinctive stylistic features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of

craftsmanship that characterize a building, structure, object or site should be kept and
preserved, where possible.

12



9/24/25, 11:53 AM

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

Lockhart, TX Code of Ordinances

Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced, wherever possible.

In the event replacement is necessary, the new material should reflect the material being
replaced in composition, design, finish, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or
replacement of missing architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of
features, substantiated by historical, physical or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural

designs or the availability of different architectural elements from other buildings or
structures,

The surface cleaning of structures shall be undertaken with the gentlest means possible.
Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the historic building materials

shall not be undertaken. Painting of original unfinished masonry surfaces shall be
discouraged.

Every reasonable effort shall be made to protect and preserve archaeological resources
affected by, or adjacent to, any project.

The owner of property for which a city building permit is issued shall be responsible for
maintaining a safe construction and/or demolition site at all times by providing proper
barricades, signage, walkways, erosion control, etc., and following all structural and safety

recommendations and requirements of city, state, and federal governmental agencies.

(Ord. No. 93-19, pt. 13, 9-21-93; Code 1982, § 12.5-13)

aboui:blank

212



9/24/25, 11:54 AM

Lockhart, TX Code of Ordinances

Sec. 28-14. - Certificate for demolition and other demolition requirements.

about:blank

(a) A certificate for demolition is required to carry out demolition on any property or in any district

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

designated as historic (M or HL). A city permit for the demolition of an historic landmark property
or property within an historic district, including secondary buildings and objects, shall not be
granted by the building official or other city official withoutthe review of a completed application
for a certificate for demolition and approvai by the commission. Demolition of any part of a
property designated as historic (H or HL) that will occur as a part the construction or relocation
requiring a certificate for alteration which is not replaced by the construction'or relocation shall
also réquire a certificate for demolition. The certificate for demolition application shall be filed
with and be reviewed with any certificate for alteration application related to the property. The
certificate for demolition shall follow the application procedure provided for a certificate for
alteration in this chapter. The owner of property shall be responsible for maintaining and
protecting the life and safety of the general public and workers on or near the site of any
demolition that is carried out as the result of the granting of a city building permit.

The commission and historical preservation officer shall process each application for a certificate
for demolition as expeditiously as possible.

If requested, the commission and/or the historical preservation officer shall assist property
owners with advice, guidance, resource lists and other information regarding construction

techniques, materials, means and methods which are acceptable alternatives to the proposed
demolition.

A certificate for demolition shall not be issued in lieu of a city building permit for demolition, and
shall be obtained prior to the issuance of a city demolition permit, if such permit is required.
Approval and issuance of a certificate for alteration by the commission qualifies as "other zoning
action required to effect the issuance of a city building permit” as specified in the Lockhart Code,
section 64-126(b), or as may be hereafter amended.

The commission and/or the historical preservation officer shall not unreasonably withhold a
certificate for demolition.

To obtain a certificate for demolition, the applicant shall demonstrate that the criteria set out for
a certificate for alteration is inapplicable.

Special considerations and provisions shall be made for emergency repair of sudden and
unforeseen damage to buildings by acts of God or man which shafl endanger a building, business,
owner, of the public. Immediate temporary repairing, shoring, barricading, etc., shall be
encouraged with only notification of the historical preservation officer that such work is taking

place. A certificate for demolition is required for partial or complete removal of damage which will

112



9/24/25, 11:54 AM

Lockhart, TX Code of Ordinances

change the exterior appearance of the building or structure. A special rapid review and approval may be

requested by the applicant. The historical preservation officer shall inmediately contact the commission
chairman for action.

(h) The property owner of any property on which demolition is carried out as the result of the

granting of a city building permit shall be responsible for protecting the life and safety of the
general public and workers on or near the property. The structural and site integrity of the
property being demolished, the remainder and adjacent property shall be maintained at all times
during demdolition, at the expense of the property owner engaged in the demolition. An _
inspection and certified report by an independent registered engineer shall be required prior to
issuance of a certificate for demolition or a city building permit for the demolition of any building
or structﬁre which shares common walls, foundations, roofs and/or utilities with adjacent
property. The independént:engineer's report shall be provided by the property owner and may be
required prior to issuance of any building permit by the city. The owner of property for which a
city building permit is issued shall be responsible for maintaining a safe construction site at all
times by providing proper barricades, signage, walkways and erosion control, etc,, and following
all structural and safety recommendations and requirements of the independent engineers

report, city, state, and federal governmental agencies.

{Ord. No. 93-19, pt. 14, 9-21-93; Code 1982, § 12.5—14)

about:blank

2i2



